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Mr. Hollenbeck, before you tell me about your

occupation of farming}l would like you to tell

me a little bit about yourself and your early
years.

1'11 be 91 next month. 1 was born July 31,1889.

1 was born in the Town of Gaines on the Ridge Road

just east of Gaines Village. Most of my life has
been spent in this vieinity only for a few years
whoen 1T lived in Lllwaruj;mr'i a few years in lockport
when my tather was working tor other prorople and |

was a real small boy. We came back to Gaines before
1 was in my teens and then from then on 1've lived in
the vicinity of Gaines,and waterport ,and Clarendon,
but all in Orleans County. 1 farmed it all my life.

1 never earned a $1.00 an hour in my life. When I
was 18 years old 1 worked for a farmer. I was the
only man he had. 1 done everything there was to do
and | got $30.00 a month. Not an hour or a day* but
$30.00 a month. My board and my horse kept too,
come to think about it. 1In those days we drove
horses, all together, no automobiles.

How about your wife, when you got married %

My first wife was Beulah Miller and she lived on

a adjoining farm so after 1 called on her 1 could
walk home. Sometimes, though, we had the horse to
take ecare of but usually 1 could walk home. It
wouldn't be day-light either; 1 didn't stay till
day—-Light, 1 walked home while it was still dark.
when 1 was in my teens 1 lived a lot of years north
of waterport. And at that time there wasn't a
telephone pole or a wire anywheres in the country.

1 well remember when they first strung the wires

for the telephone. They called it the liome Telephone

Company and there was a lot of opposition to it.
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Some farmers, they didn't want the poles set on
their land! When they had the poles ready to
seb the farmer and his wilfe would go oub and they'd

jump down in to one of these holes; then the people
that were trying to set the poles would go to another
one, Fhey'd run over and jump in that hole so they

couldn't set the poles. Ancther man, named George

Fuller, he gave them permission to set poles on his
farm but he wanted them set right along by the fence,
on the same line. In those days all the farmers
mowed their own road-sides and he didn't want the
poles out where they would bother him. But they

did set them, about 4 foot outside of where he
wanted them. The next morning they were all chopped
down! Mobody see anybody chop them, but everybody
had a pretty good idea who had done it. Then the
Telephone Company reset them and they set them on

the line of the fence where the farmer wanted them.
That phone company they called it the Home Telephone.
There was anywhere from 4 to 8 or }U people on one
line. Everybody had their individual rings and
everybody on the line got that ring. Some of them
would be like one long and two shartgxﬂr three shorts

and two longs. FEverybody knew everybody's ring on

their line and you cculd ring anybody on your line

without calllng Central Every home had a little
telephone on the wall with a little crank on 1it;

you could crank who ever you wanted and you could

call anyone on your line. Of course there wasn't

many secrets in those days. Fverytime the phone

rang and somebody would go to answer it, sometimes [,ﬂ

it would be 6 or 8 on the same line all listening.

I don't know how much 1 ean tell you about the
telephone business although my Tather took a team

of horses and a wagon and strung the wire for all

the phones. When 1 was a younygster in the vicinity

of Waterport there wasn't a telephone pole nor a

wire anywhere in the country. ‘Then after the Telephone

Company got organized then they finally hooked up

with lh? Hnll pFDplw S0 you could get plares DuL51dr
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of the viecinity which, of course, at first you
couldn't. vou could just call the people in that
viecidnity on your call.

1 worked with wy father for several years. T guit

Albion school, 1 was going to Albion High School,

and my father always worked for other farmers and
when he got 5$1.00 a day for the year around that was

top wages. He raised his family. He got a few

privileges along with that money. He got his potatoes

and his firewood. Firewood consisted of old rails

and apple tree wood that they drew up and threw off

at the back door and just as guick as Fay, myself,

was old enough,they gave me a buck-saw and 1 had to
saw the wood up so we could get i1t in the stove. It
was full length when they brought it there,it was

8 or 10 feet long, and I had to cut it up so it would
go in the cook-stove.

My father had a bad accident at the Waterport Crossing

on account of a rail-road car that was illegally
parked, He sued the rail-road and after the lawyer
got his cut,my father had $300.00. That was the
most money that he ever had in his life at one time.
My mother and T talked him into quiting working
for other farmers and start working for himself. I
told him if he woulgithat)l would cuit school. T
was at that time in the albion High School. So I
quit school when T was about 16, and he and I went

to farming on a farm of 80 acres on shares. We got

half,and the owner got half. We lived on it and

finally accumulated a little money so that we could
buy better horses, better machinery. At first my
father took that 5300.00 and he went to auctions
around and he picked up an old team ol horses here
and thmrﬁjand some used machincryjanﬁ we hired the
machinery and we done the best we could. As we
farmed it,we built up a little reputation for
honesty, 1 guess, - Then we could buy stuff and
give our notes for it. 50 then we worked into

hetter horses and better machinery and the man that
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AT et Parm oduesely wiee wass Dl phwaat bogresA T
tlyral,  arnd he odived and Lhen swe oanosocl onbe DR aerroes,
ahout twice as big 4 plaece dnd that was owned by
another man named Fol lor, Wi lived there two

Years And e died. 3
Fogan on the Fulldérs "J'l At that time, after Andrew

o Lhey satd we wore ind of

Faller irerd, my father moved up on the Ridge noad
on the =ullard Marm _,::rn'i [ mewed 18 miles to

£ (1r‘1'7:fi-;.'.. I mmgese] I3 !'”,-r. witl 1 11-"-_'”"?:'-; 1 was

22 yrars olds giovedd p bhere with 3 teams ol
horsecs, 2 hired men, 4 hired glir), a8 wife and a
Daby. | stayed in Clarendon, that was a 180 acre
farm alse - - - 1 stayéel there three yedrs. 1y the
meant ime my Ffather's health go bad; he had a had
heart, so 1 moved back onto the ttidge into the
tenant house of the farm whera he Lived. That

fall he died and I stayed on that farm, the Hullard

arm;, lLor Len yoarSa f mourso in that Lime farming
i sl

changed @ lot. wWhen § lirst started to farm and all

the time ¢ Ald [-':ir'rnulr._;., wir worked with a ene=furrow

plaw.@nly in later years 1 did buy a rord tractor
that drove two plows. it that darn thing: 1'd go
oul attor supper thinking | owas about to do some WOrk
and lyy the time | got it started 1 owas tired out and

it would be dark. 3o my Pord tractor rnever done any
e e e LS ST

plowing for me much.

In the beginning there was a wooden frame made about
3 by 3 pieces of wood with spikes drove down throuuh
them, square spikes, and that was our drag. ‘That was

a Heoa='Tooth [rad. Meen in Later years they @ome out

with a Spring=toeth drag made o a stoel frame with

s

v dead=gpring bever that you could regulate the cleepat b

wfE it It waz a Jlet betiter. Mae Tipst drag was
17 tooth amd thoy wero slowl leweloped for a Ltwoe
horse dranas sriel Bhen as the L ame weni o along they

srilardged thig drag so it got up to a d4-horse drag.

hen ane man would drive 4 horses and do the work
that 11 used to take 2 men Lo do when they uged a
5% toaotly Jdrad.

T Ehe Lescylpmiyneg, Fodl iy before my timee, Lthey usedd



=

Hollenbeck

| £of pus septad ,sTme] *,Leudtsd, :86J0H

smoTTed Aag

¥ooquUeTIOH @TTad PUB SIMeT

pus asoy

(£33Fng euy3z ul)




fiellenbeck 5

a reape§’and even bhefore that they used a cradle.
Every man to a cradle when they went to bale the
grain, maybe 5 or & men would swing cradles till
they got it cut. Fhey'd lay these bundles off in
piles and somebody else would come along and bind
them. They had to bind them with the same stuff
- = = like if they was cutting oats they'd take a
handful of catstraw and give it a funny twist and
make a knot and use that to bind it. Really, 1
never did a great deal of hand binding. About the
only work I done like that was when a Binder would
skip. when I was first starting to farm it much,
the Grain Binders were just coming in to style and
they wasn't perfect by any means, The twine was
very poor so there was lots of skips. It would kick
out a bundle that wouldn't be tied. So that was the
only hand tying I ever done. After the cradle era
was over, they had a Sel f-Rake Reaper. They'd reap
this grain and there was big rakes come around and
raked it all up in a bundle at a time on one side,
Other farmers or their wives, or anybody they
could get to work those day% come along and bound

them.
Wwhen I moved into Clarendon I moved into a strange(wEw)
tmwnf I went down to the grocery store and 1 told

the man where L lived and what my name wasiand how
big a family 1 had. 1 said: "wWe'll have some eggs
and some butter to sell but the majority of the stuff
1 want to get trusted for and 1'll pay in the fall.
and I want my wife to come here and buy my groceries

and get trusted for them." 1 remember he was Floyd
Gillis, he was the merchant thero, He looked at
e and he satd: "wWell vou look as bthough you'd pay."

e said: "You come and geb anything you want.*
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SLING  TWO

We was walking down the road. ‘That made a nice
wide place for the horses to btravel in. 'here was
no auvtomobiles at all in those days. Afterxwards the

first automobile that 1 remember looked jus' about like

a top buggy with no frills en it. The engine was
under the seat and the crank over on che side and it
had a hard rubber tire, just about like what was on
the buggies in those days. BLven some of the buggies
when they were first put out had a whip socket.

ﬁuggles in those days had a whip socket, so

they put one on the automobile for some unknown

reason, but that's what they do.

My father was driving one of those rigs that when
they got with the horse and the automobile. When
he got started in farming with that $300,00 he was
driving one of those buggiesjaﬂd the horse run and
kicked and had guite a bad time.

So automobiles gradually improved and they had the
nuematics tires on them, You used to always have

to carry a spare tire and a spare tube with you

because if you went ten miles you were pretty sure
to have a flat tire and you'rd have to stop and take
that tire off and put on ancther and a new tubﬁﬁand
take your pump and pump iU up by hand. That was a
lat different than it is now-a-tdays when bthey just
change bthe wheel in a few minutes.

llow about your raising of horses 7

After | moved back from Clarenden onto the Bullard
Farm on the #ldge, 1 stayed there Len yedars. [n that
ten years 1 bought some Hemlock trees and cut them

and drew them and built me a house on the corner

where 1t 18 now. On the corneor of the Waterport

koad and Route {104, One of my children was

born in this imusr:} enly one of them, my yvoungest

one who is now in Seattle. During this period in
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time when 1 was on the Ridge, | got into the railsing
———— i

of percheron Horses. | went out to Ghio and bought

four registered Percneron mares with foal. Then 1
went down to Cornell and bought a registered stallion

and started raising colts. I built them up to 30

head of horses that 1 had on this place. About

that time when they reached thelr peak, tractors

commenced to come in and the horses were on the

down grade. 1 sold good, big Percheron horses that
would weigh 1800 pounds for 540.00 a piece. If 1
had bought Holstein heifers when 1 bought those
hﬂrsesx[ would have been a lot better off. Then
afterwards I bought a farm down north of here, 200

acres, and started to raise cattle and that was a

good turning point because the dairy business was

ol the ups and 1 did sell milk for 53.00 a hundred,
That was awful cheap, but it kept getting better and
hetter,and finally it got up where 1t 18 NOW.

Now of course they pick 1t all up with the trucks,
come right te the barn and siphon it right out of
the big holding tank into the truck tank. Tﬂey
go all over the county,; all over the country, 1
guess.

¥r. ilollenbeck, you used to transport cattle to

Buffalc 7
Ch yeah. During those years I got into the racket

of buying livestock and 1 bought calves and hogs

and szheep and everything elseland took them to the

puffale stock Market. 1 remember one ltem = - =

| took up a load of lambs one time and the buyer
wouldn't give me what 1 wanted lor thesin, [ was
going to loose money and T wouldn't sell them to
him. Uut he thought he had me over a barrel, of
course, because 1 had them there and he says:
vwhat are you going to do with them 7" And I
says: "1'm going to load them back on my truck

and take them home." And | 114, 1 placed

them out to other farmers and we weighed them 1in
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el Loverabar=i)

and 1 paid them so much a pound for all they put on
Lheew, Wb thoy el Ehom Latter, 1 took Eheat baack
to Pultalo and | got a ketber price Ior thﬂm.sg |
finally ecame out all rlghtj But the buyer up there,
he was from HBoston 1 remember, he said: "What are

2.

yvou going Lo do with theémi rpd | =zald: "1'm going

to lead them up and take them home." And that's

what T did. 8ut | bought a lot of steck for 4 or
9 years. had then what was a hard-A 'tr-*-trucl-:f aned
that was guite a job to go to bulffalo with 1t.

id you have somebody go with you when you went up
to puffala, another man 3
Oh hardly ever. Once in a while somebody wanted to go.

How about Clayton Woodruff =

well layton went with me. ilow did you happen to know
alout that ?

He told me.

oh he did 7 Several different people went with me.

T know one mar, his name Was Hivers, and he was hdek)
and we was going up there after dark and he says:

" Sappose somebody holds us up ?" 1 says: "If they
hold us up then you just keep your eyes and your
mouth shut and they won't know that you're in there.”
I had a lot of people ride with me out of curicsity
you know. 1 very seldom hired anybody to go with

me. But after a few years Cecil Park learned to

Arive my truck and then he had to make these fuffalo
trips amnd 1'd stay home and do omy larming. In the
eventngs,1'd go out and buy stock l[rwm other larmers.
1 gradually worked from a hard-tire-truck to a better

truck. I think the first Ford 1 ever bought, I paid

s300.00 far it. eems to me that was what the cost
was. A Ford Touring Car.  And Lhen we gradual ly got
inte botter ones. |'ve had sevoral cars, My family

L1
ased to laugh at me: 1'd buy a car and 1'd say, this
H
g thoe last one 1 'm ever going to get, Thon 14
get rid of that and get anothoer one. 5o 1n my day

Ttye had 3 Bulicks and 2 Cadillacs. Well in these
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late wears when these Fords got qm::d}l got back
trito Forcds  baat 1]1{_-y W T SO 11 Terent than the

first ones 1 ever had.

They tell me how good ! look and T tell them: "You

can't tell hy the looks of a frog how far he can

Jumpr. I look a lot better than 1 am 1 guess.
Look

Betty says 1 don't,much different than 1 ever did
but it seems as though I must. lLook at the pictures
of me in there.

Aut he has always looked the same, no matter how old
or how young, he's always looked the same. Like my
Bz shand 024 (his brother) as a child you would never
know him as the name he was: not a bit the same.
(NOTE: Betty Emerson speaking here. She is a acalin

in-law who often comes in to help care for Mr. H.).

Mr. Hollenbeck, how did you happen to build a house
on this particular corner 7

Wwell 1 ouwned this piece of land and 1 thought this
would be a nice place ftor a home. A nice spob youo
know. But at that time 1 can readily see why nobody
thought s0 because there was a locust thicket, This
place was a wilderness all grown up to everything.
At that time it was owned by an old lady who lived
down here on the hill,and there was no bBuilding
here until | built here. 1 built all the buildings

on this eoayner, the harns, Lhe garage, :_-'-.rﬁr':,-thi.n-:j.
i

As guick as 1 bought at,the town says) yr_nu”' ve gobt Lo
cut that corner off: it's a blind corner. 'The old
lady when she owned it they never said anything about

iL,.,'Ir -rhf-y kriew she couldn't do it bot as quick as |

got it then they said: "Clean it up."” 50 1 cleaned
it up.

[low many acres on this corno:

T Yo

I Ve il ot 33 Hiow. iwt it & 00 acre Farm,
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or did have, down here where my daughter, you know

Frieda - - - o you know FPrieda tlobbs

No 1 don't.

My son—in-law, he's dead now. ut, well my
grandson works i1t now. fiut 1 seold that to them.

A1l T'we got left now is 33 acres.

You planted these trees on this property ?

211 these trees arcund this corner 17 planted. All
but that one: the one north of the drive-way there.
It was there. But all of the rest of them 1 planted.
Look at them now.

They are beautiful Maple trees.

Yeah, | went in the woods and dug them up. Found
tirem all in the woods. puag them up and brought them

up and transplanted bhem.

when I got ready to build this house, this land all

fell away from the Ridge, sloped gradually away. It
was really high land but the roads were considerably
higher., As T was building this house a man come
along one day and he says: "Couldn't you find any
place to build a house only down in that damn hale 2%
1've ol ten wondoered 11 he has cwver heen by sinee.

Of course 1 drew in all this fill around here. ‘This
was down low and now it's all level. I drew it all
in here with trucks and horses. ['wve got pictures
in that book of horses drawing stone up this north
road to lay up this wall around the back here. 1
layed that wall up, you see, to the level of this
arcund here.

and vou drew the plans right frowm Bhe start €6 thi
Einmish Tor this home, didn'k you

Yes, that's right. I don't know how 1 did it. |
know that I drew plans almost every night and the
next night 1'4 think of something different and 1'd
Araw it different and then 1 finally come up with
this.

nnd you have a how many bed-room home

Eight.

10
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wight bearcoms!

I needed them when 1 ted s family and s hired mun.
How many nired men did you have?

Oh, I had 8 nslf dozen there. Now here, 1 guess three
is the most I ever hed in here. Then, 1 had the two
daughtera and the boys, and they all had separate rooms.
Wwho did the cooking for all these people?

My wife.

Ko help?

Only the girls when the girls got bigger. we haed &
hired girl st first when we was down on the EBullard

farm, but never one &t this house. Nec, 1 don't beliesve s0.
(Mr. Hollenbeck sddressses betty Emerson). Uo you remember
any hired girl here, betty? 1 don't think I ever had a
hired girl in this house.

Une of my boys, my youngest boy, is the only one
that was born here. The rest of them were all scattered

garound; all in Carlton and Clarendon.
& &8 & & & & & & & & & & & & § & A R & B F R R 8 R 8 F 8 8 A @ & B @ @ 8 &

(end of taped interview, with lMrs. Aadzinaki)

(NQOTwm: a second interview with Fay Hollenbeck was conducted

by Mra. H. McAllister at a later date).

This 30 minute taped interview was transcribed by Lysbeth

Hoffman of waterport, HNew York.
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For the OURLEANS COUNTY HISTORICAL ASS0J1ATION, Helen

McAllister of Medina, New York, is interviewing MR. FAY CARR

HOLLENBECK of Route # 104 and waterport, New York, outside of

Albion,

Mc

MC

Mc

Me

Mc

MC

H

Mo
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Mc

New York.
The date is [December 19, 1980.

Mr. Hollenbeck; having lived 91 years in Orleans County,
your recorded memories and past experiences could be most

meaningful to future historians.

Let's start out by asking you; what was your mother's
malden name 7

Belle Perry.

Your father's full name 7

Lewis Hollenbeck.

Did you have brothers and sisters 7

I had one brother, Ross.

Ross Hollenbeck.
He used to be Sheriff of this county.

During the Prohibition time and for how long a period 2

During the Prohibition Time. One term.
Was he wvoted into office or appointed ?
Voted. at that time sSheriffs couldn't succeed themselves.

After one term they were out.

would you tell us what it was like for him to be Sheriff at
that time, as far as you know 7 wWhat were some of his
responsibilities 7

It was during Prohibition Time and his responsibilities were

running down Boot-leggers, and arresting them, and confiscating
their liguor, their cars and horses and esyerything they used
in those days.

Did a lot of the Boot-Leg Ligquor come across from canada ?
They all come across. They all come across by boat. They'd
run in as close to the shore as they dared with their hig

power boats and then they'd use row-boats from there to the



Me

H

Mc

Mc

Mc

Mc

Me

Mo

Mc

H

M

Hollenbeck 13

shore. 'Then the farmers who lived along the lakeshore;
different cnes were contacted and they went along with
these Boot-Leggers and they had their horses down there
and "bobs" and "slip-boats" and things, and they loaded
the stufi off from the row-boats onto the shore and these
farmers drew it up to their barns. The folasa Lpera
on the roadside and there the Hoot-leggers met them with
their cars.

Was the Boot-lLeg Liquor in bottles 7

ouart bottles: most all of 1t.

What is Boot-Leg Liguor ?

Whiskey and Champagne, mostly.
It's Whieskey and Champagne ?

Mostly Whiskey in those days.
And that would be made in Canada ?
Yes, and shipped across. These Boot-Leggers had a

system, you know. They'd have lights on the shore where

the boats were supposed to land, where farmers would meet
them with their horses; so it was kind of a complicated
deal.

Did they have lights that they would flash ?

They had lanterns on the shore. 1t was either one lantern
or two or three; whatever they had agreed on.

Was there any kind of police force out in the lake 7

No.

50 they had to wait until the boats landed,

Yeah. The ofﬁétﬂhda and my brother and his

b

deputies and State Troopers, they all hid down there and
they watched this boat unload and they watched this farmer
draw 'em up to his barn and then they closed in on them and
got the team and the harness and the farmer. Then when the
Boot-Leggers pulled in to get their loads, they all arrested
them. They ended up by having eight or ten Boot-lLeggers that

they arrested that night.

wWhat about the people that were delivering it, from Canada;
were they arrested 7

They never got them. They were in that boat and they never

come ashore.

How did they carry the bottles 7 Were they in large boxes ?
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No, they were in bags. Eachmbgﬁtle was in a cardboard

protecting case and there were 12 bottles in a bag,

burlap bags, and that's how they were carried.
would the tarmer get some Boot-leg Liguor too 7

If he didn't,it was his own fault!/

( Laughter)

pid he get more than the liquor for pay 7

He got paid, sure. T don't know how much: never
did know.

Were there quite a few farmers on the american side that

participated in this ?

oh, several along the lakeshore north of here that was in on
this deal at one time or another. This particular one that 1
knew the most about, he lost his team and his harness.

He lost them because your brother arrested him 7

Yep. The government wanted a place to keep the horses.

You know, after they got them they didn't know what to do
with them.

How many horses 7

Two. Just a team. And, they wmﬂ¥?if place to keep them
and my brother said: "Well, maybe Iﬂwnuld keep them for
them." So T did. They paid me for keeping the horses here
until they sold them. 'They finally had an augpion here and

sold the team and the harness.

I1f the liquor came across in the boats, they had to be good
sized boats.

oh vyes.

and the one or more farmers were there to load the liquor

on to their wagons 7

Wwell, it wasn't wagcns,inx:hnxxinxxxxtiun it was one wWagon.
and they were going to take it from there up to their barn ?
Yes. There wasljust one farmer involved in each transaction.

There wasn't ever more than one farmer.

But there were other Boot-Leggers that came there ?

vYes, they must have had eight or ten that they arrested that
one night.

would they be people from this area ?

They come from Rochester.
But they were arrested at Lhe same time ?

ves. ‘They were putting in after their loads and the police
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arrested them and that's the way it went.

Will you describe for us what was done with the ligquor at

that time 7 Did you help transport it ?
¢h, I transported all of it. 1 had a truck-load. I had

100 bags of whiskey}and 100 bags of Champagne, and two cases
of Dry Gin on my truck.zmd I pulled it up beside the jail in

Albion, between the jail and the Courthouse, a d my brother

left a deputy to guard it. We got to talking about somebody
ghagxk that kind of liked liquor, so we figured that we might
as well have some. And the funny part of it is, T wouldn't
drink & fﬁﬁmgﬂi full in 100 years anyway, but I thought 1'd

have some friends that might like some - - - so this deputy

and I, we tock 11 bags off my truck and hid it around the
jaill When my brnthef‘%inally come back, he was down there
arresting these Boot-Leggers as they pulled in, and when he
finally got back, about day-light, T told him what we had
done 'cause I thought he should know and,boy, did he hit the
ceiling!. He mmx made us go get all that liguor and put it
back on the truck. ({ Laughter) Of course, he didn't ball
me out so much, .jL&Amﬁrifﬁdq-the truck driver: but he balled
out that deputy. He said: "I left you here to guard it, not

to steal it !" But we'd grab a bag of liquor and lodk around

to see that nobody was coming, and then we'd run out and put it
back on the truck. Of course it was day-light then. We
finally put it all back on the truck and then we took it to

Rochester.

where did you take it in Rochester ?

We went downstairs in the Post office. And in all the office
buildings around, everybody was in the windows going through
all sorts of performances: some were hanging out their
tongues, some was praying for it and they were kind of
begging for some of that liquor, you Know.

what did they do with it in the Post uffice

put it down in the basement: that's all 1 know. 1 never knew
about it any farther than that.

How about the head of the Post Uffice there; was he involwved

with this at one time ? (i:)
His son was one of the main Boot-Leggers: a man named

Stoudt. when we went from Albion to Rochester - - = 1 &M
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that load to Rochester in my truck - - - and, oh, there

wasa lour or Tive cars ol [ml]ﬂu ahead of me and behind me

so we wouldn't be hi-jacked, you know. S0 I had a Police

Escort all the way to Rochester.

What kind of a truck did you say you had 2

Oh, at that time 1 think 1 - - - that was after 1 had
this Rumely Dtewck - - - 1 think 1 had a Ford truck.
Then you had police cars in front of you and behind you
and you were the only truck carrying the liquor ?

You see, at that time a quart of Whiskey was worth $12.00

or $15.00, and 1 had 100 bags with 12 bottles in a bag:! so

you see that load was worth thousands of dollars. If the
Boot-lLeggers could have knocked that off they'd have been
"sittin' pretty".

what ever happened to your brother, did he suffer as a

result of making this big catch 7 Did people wish he
weren't Sheriff because of this and make it hard for him ?
Boot-Leggers did. He could have gone out of that Sheriff's
office rich. He was offered all sorts of money by the
Boot-Leggers, to just let them go. But he never took a
nickel ! He was an honest Sheriff. Of course he didn't

drlnk himself, and he had no ; sympathy for them.
He knocked them cff and then he knocked off spveral S5tills

right in Albion. (oveleld)

were there quite a few of those around ?

Oh yes. There were several stills in Albion. And they'd
get word - - - somebody would tipiﬁ?ﬂ off, you know, and
they'd raid this place and find all this material and the
Stills where they made the Boot-leg Whiskey.

what did they do with that when they found it 2

I really don't know. I didn't get any of it, 1 know that !
{ Laughter)

Wwere Stills different than "Bath-Tub Gin" ? Was there a
difference there 7

I don't know. I never had any "Bath-Tub Gin". I don't L
know what that is. (| Laughter

vour brother certainly had some interesting experiences.

oh, 1 guess he did. 1 say, he could have been rich when he
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left that job if he'd taken dishonest money, you know.

Mo When you were a young man, Lt's my understanding, you left
High 5chool to help your father on the farm.
H That's right. My father worked always for other farmers.

At one time we lived in Lockport,6 and we lived in Ulean.
At that time when we lived in Olean he worked on the

Trolley line that run from Glean to E;adford, up over the
hill%?__ﬁﬁe; when we muvégmgﬁck into the country, he worked
for farmers. Tt run alongjpthat for several years, he worked
for different farmers. 'Then every lst of April some other
farmer would offer him more money and we'd pack up everything
and move to another farm.

Mc Was the lst of April the only time, really, that a farmer

would move 7

H Well, it was the accepted time. It's when most farmers and
their hired men changed.

Mc Why was that 72

H The 1st of April is about the time that work opened up and
these pecple)like my dad,who wanted to work for another farmer,
he would want to get there and be ready for work when the
Wweather broke, you know. But, the lst of April was the
accepted time to move. There was farmers moving all over.

Mc You worked with your father and you must have married at quite
a young age because you were telling about having a wife and

child at the age of 22.

H That's right.

Mc What was the name of your first wife 7

H Beulah Miller.

Me How o0ld were you when you married 7

H I was 21 in July and T was married that fall. TIf 1
hadn't gywds my brags 1| wouldn't be married until I was of

age, [ would have probably been married quicker! But 1 waited
until ¥ was 21, then T was married.
Mo That was the time when you had to have your parent's consent

when you got married, is that what you mean 7

H T don't ever remember getting my parent's consent. 1



Mc
I8!

Me

Mc
H

Mo

Mc
H

H

M

Hollenbeck 18

remember getting her father's consent. You know what he
said 7

What

He said: "aAs long as you always behave yourself." And 1
said: "well, we always have.”

You had a number of children by this first marriage.

Four.
would you tell me their names 7

Yes. Morris, Frieda, Louis, and Paul. Now, Paul

Parsons was born Paul Hollenbeck.

Now this brings me to another whole series of questions
that 1 think future historians will really relish because
in days gone by we used to handle this sort of thing
differently than we do today. We used to have Orphanages:
we used to have all kinds of things. Your children were
quite young when your first wife became ill 2

Sshe died when Paul was born. She died with, what we called
in those days, “milk-_ﬂ%?'“.

which is really a blood clot.

I don't know.

Well then, who adopted Paul ?

Richard Parsons. Parsons' wife, Hattie, was a sister to my

wife. And they took this baby,to take care of him, and they
got attached to him, & ¥hey had no ~hildren of their own

and they wanted to adopt him,and at that time T had no wife
and a family of children and T knew he'd have a wonderful
home, so | consented. Tt's a good thing for him that 1 did
because now he's a rich man.

Have you kept in touch with each other through the years 7
You and Paul 7

ch yes. Just this summer he stood outside this window
talking to me and do you know what he said ? He said:
"1'yve got so much money that I don't know what to do with
it." ©
1'4d like to meet himf That's wonderful, 1 think that he was

very fortunate and I think that you were fortunate to have

someone in the family that would want a baby.
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Hattie, my wife's sister, she had no children and she
couldn't have any so they were very pleased to get this
boy. ‘lhey educated him and sent him to college and he had

a wonderful chance.

Then you married again, your second marriage. What was

yvour second wife's name ?

Esther Miller. She was an "own cousin" to my first wife.

They were both school teachers.

Did she teach after she was married ?

A little while, not much. "They both taught a little while
after they were married, but not much.

Then you had children by your second wife 2

Four.
Would you name them, please ?
The first one was Pauline, who 1s now dead. Avis and

Nina and Richard.

vour second wife and you were able to celebrate your
Golden Wedding ?
That's right. We lived together over 50 years and then she

had a stroke and she passed away.

well, medicine has certainly changed over the years and
the care the doctors give uﬁjand calling on us in our homes

and everything. You were telling me of a tragic event with

a young girl. Would you want to tell us about that 7

well, Pauline, who was my second wife's first child, she

played High School Basketball and every once in a while they'd
have to take her out because she'd have a pain in her side
and the doctor said it was Appendicitis. And one time we

went to Albion and a surgeon - - - 1 call him a surgeon - -

- - horse doctor, 1 quess, - - - anyway he was in Albion

ta do an operation and he said he had time so he would operate
on Pauline. And, she was just as well when we went to

2lbion.

How old was she 7

16, And she had never been sick a day in her lifesonly she
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did have these spells of having this pain in her side.
amyway, we took her to the hospital and he took her into
the hospital and in 20 minutes he was through operating

on her, and in three days we brought her home, dead.

This JHS the hospital in Albion 2

Yes.

What year would this have been 7

Oh, I can't tell you; I don't remember the years.

But this was hefore 5ulfur and Penicillin and modern drugs 7
1t wouldn't have made any difference ! He ruptured one of
her bowels and didn't know it and sewed her up tight and
that was it. 5he was full of Peritonitis and there was no
saving her.

1t was a horrible experience.

At that time the funerals wxmxkhmksxxmxkhm were held in
the home, weren't they 7
Yes. ‘The funeral was held right here. We had a big crowd.

That was a horrible experience for you to go through.
It was so useless too, you know; that was the trouble, it
was so useless. If we hadn't of taken her to Albion, she

might have been alive yet.

Did she go to school in Albion ?

Oh yes. She played with the Albion High School girls:
basketball.

How did she get to school, was there a School Bus at that

time 7

That was just about the time that School Buses started and

we had a School Meeting down here and before the meeting 1
went around the neighborhoocd and talked to some of the

people and told them that T was going to bring it upe That
we should have School RBuses come into this district, you know.
And I remember Vic Manning, for one, I asked him what he
thought about it. And, of course, it was going to cost more
money and he didn't have any children, never had any. He

ik

says: "By ——— Geez-wax, | don't think much of it !

"well," 1 says: "I'm goin' bring it up at the School Meeting
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and T wanted it noised around so the people would know."

Wwe had a big attendance that night. 1 Lrought 1t up and
they voted it down. And 1 said: "Well, now I'm goling to
appeal this to Albany and 1 think they're goling to up-hold
it." And T said: "Do you want to make any provisions in our
budget to pay the cost of it 2" and one of our neighbors,
Elmer Moore, says: "We'll take our medicine when we're

sick 1"+ and I said: "wWell, Elmer, 1'm afraid you're goin'
a be sick !" and it turned out that it was, it was appealed
and that was the beginning of the School Bus.

Before that, 1 used to take her to Albion.

Were the first School Buses then paid by taxes or did you
have to pay for each student to go directly 7

Faid by taxes, the same as they are now. As far as 1 know,
they were never paid for by any individual, I don't think.
And we never paid any things to have a kid ride on them
wither; never have.

50 they kamk "took their medicine" 7

Yeah. ( Laughter) and now, of course, it's a common thing.
That was the beginning. There was very few School Buses in
those days, they were just starting.

was that before the time of Centralization or had they just
rentralized and closed the Country Schools 7

They closed this school, down here. They had closed this
school. 11 think my wife, X=xkrx Esther, was very near the
last teacher down to this school.

You said both yaur_E}rst wife and your second wife taught for

a little while after they were married. Wasn't there a
stipulation that married women could not teach for a while ?
Not in those days. In those days they didn't have to go to
college, neither. My wife went to Albion to what they called

Training School and went from there to teaching. Sometimes

just High School graduates would teach Country Schools, you

krnow. [t wasn't guite so fussy as they are now-a-days.

when you were working as a farmer, a hard working farmer,
a young man) did you have a Hired Man help you ?

Not when my father and 1 worked together, which we did in



Hollenbeck 22

the beginning. We didn't have any other help: just the
two of us, that was enough. rut after we separated:
Father moved up here on the Ridge on the Bullard Farm,
where Downeys now live, and I went to Clarendon. 1 was
only 22 then. 1 moved to (larendon, 18 miles from where
I lived, and 1 had three teams of horses, two hired men,
a hired girl, a wife, and a baby. That was pretty good
for 22 years old !

Mc I should think so ! Having a couple of hired men didn't
mean then that you were a well-to-do farmer 7

H Ch no. No, T never was that. ane

Me But that was a common thing, tq1a hired man working for
you 7

H Ch yes, sure. You couldn't do all the work alone, you

know. You couldn't work three teams of horses alone.

Mo Did the hired men live in the house with you 7

H Yes, these men did. They were both single. Single men,
and we boarded them. They got their lodging and their
board. Used to get up in the morning - - - five o'clock
in the morning. Makes think - - - I was talking to
a man down south one time and he was talking about that he
had colored fellows working for him. And I says: "What
hours do they work ?" He says: "They work from "can "
41 Meanhgy N Now you never heard that; but you know
what T mean? I didn't know either. I says: “"what do
you mean ?" He says: "They work from the time they EED

see until they Can't see."
e e e T

Mc Long hours,
H They work from "ecan 'til can't".
M You mentioned having a hired girl.

1d you ever have a Hired Girl come from the Reformatory ?

H Yes, several of them,

Me How did you choose them or did you just tell them, at the
Heformatory, that you wanted a hired girl 7

H They done the chcosing. When we lived in Clarendon - - 1

say I lived in Clarendon three years - - - and that hired

girl, up there, we had, was just a girl that we knew. At

that time we had no girls from the Reformatory. After we

Caml
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back on the Ridge here, that's where we got all our hired
girls, from up there. We must have had, oh, half a dozen
different ones, 1 guess. When their time would be up

they'd go free, you know.

Mc Was this just prigr to their release from the Reformatory ?
H Yea. They had toﬁon thelr good behavior up here or they
wouldn't be paroled, you know. They'd parole them out to

a farmer, not only to me but to other places arcund; where
ever they wanted help, they'd send out one of these girls.
But they had to report back, you know, keep them posted on

how they was.
Mc Did they come and stay for a certain length of time or did
they have to go back every night =z

H No, they stayed right there. They never went back until
their time was up and then they went free.

Me And they staved right in the house with you 2

H Yeah.

Me Ate with you 7

H Yes, sure, Just like one of the family. Tn those days

farmers always ate with their help, you never had any
"separate tables", you know. They lived with us, just like

one of the family.

SIDE 2, TAPE 1

Mec Mr. Hollenbeck, you said that you and your wife used to
have hired girls that would come from the Albion Reformatory.
was <1 all girls;at that Limwaat the Reformatory 7

! Yes, they were all girls.
Mc Had they committed serious crimes for the most part ?
H They were unruly enough so that they were put in the

Reformatory. We called it The House of Refuge then.

and, they were put in there for different lengths of time
according to what their offenee was. Some ol them were real

good workers and some of them were real nice girls. They

always seemed real nice, anyway.
Me bid they have to wear a uniform 2
H Not when they was out in the country.

Me But at the school did they 7
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At the school I think they did:; but when they got out of
the school they dressed just any way they wanted to.

bid you and your wife provide any clothing for them 2
No. We had em= expenses, how much do you think a week ?2
A dollar 2

N, threed

Three dollars.

53.@? a week, yeah.

and their room and board.

They lived right with us just like one of the family.

vou never had any unpleasant experiences with them 7
Never. We never had one run away. Sometimes they would
run away from these farmers, you know; they'd get dis-
satisfied and they'd take off.

Wwere the girls at ‘The House of Refuge, for the most part,
from this area or f[rom all over 7

From all over.

Were they mostly white girls ?

All we ever had was white. They had some black ones there,

too. Years afterwards, after that, we had a Soft-Ball team

down here to Waterport and I happened to be the Manager of
it. One of my grand-daughters got me into it. Anyway, we

went over to The House of Refuge; they had a Ball-Team over

there and they had two or three colored girls on this ball
team. We went over there and played with them.

Were they pretty good ?

Yep, very good.

Someone asked me to ask you about the land just north of

this farm on which you're living right now. Do you know

anything about the land right north of here, who used to
own it or was there a house on it

There was a family named Breeze that lived the first place
north of here. They wasn't too EXEEBX ProsSperous, maybe 1
shouldn't say this. They lived in a kind of shack and cne
of their grand-daughters goes now to Nutri-Fare. We go
there occasionally and we sit at the same table where she
does and she remembers going up here to my school. Up to

the little school where my wife taught.
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would that be the Cobblestone School 7

NG . WQllgit is stone. You're probably thinking about
Childs »

Yes I am, right.

This was just down here a little ways. And my wife taught
there and this daughter of Howard Breeze, who used to live

down here, went to school to her. Now she's an old lady.

She's probably well into her 70s.
Do you think somebody in their 70s is old 7 (i:)
No, not compared to me. (Laughter)

Not when you're 21 !

No.

Well, what about the land 7 Is there quite a bit of
White Sand along through here ?

North of here, right here close, on my land there's what
we call the Sand Knoll., It was blow sand; so light that it

would blow with the wind and it was stiff like snow, you know.

LAY

Is there gquite a stretch of it
Mot an awful lot, no. And just beyond that it's dryer than
billy-o.

what can you do with white sand ?

It really wasn't White Sand, it was what we called Blow
Sand. If you got a crop up on it, it would come along and
you would make a crop. But lots of times when it would just
be coming up there would be wind, shift sand right up and
bury it right up and you would have to do it over again.

But there isn't a great deal of sand north of my land. You
get farther north, it's heavier land and stoney land and good
land.

Wwhen we lived up on the Ridge - - - we owned what was once
the Evergreen Farm - - - and out in hack}it was beautiful
for strawberries. We had sandy loam, 1t was just beautiful.

1 had a lot of strawberries here at one time. One time on
Decoration bDay 1 had strawberries out in front for sale and

people would come along and ask: "Where did you get them 2"
"Wwe raised them." And they wouldn't believe it. My wife,
her birthday was the 3rd day of June: and on her birthday we

usually could find a few to eat. But this particular year I
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them on some early land and it was an early spring and
Decoration Day, that's the last of May, we had strawberries
for sale out in front of here. 'That don't happen, only

once in a lifetime.

Having been a farmer all of your life, you've seen lots

of changes and you've seen that there are fewer farmers

and bigger farms. What do you think about that ?

Wwell, at the price they pay for this machinery now, they've
got to have mka a lot of land to pay for it. When I was

young, my father and I worked 80 acres on shares. We only

got half out of that 80 acresfﬁ The owner got the cgﬁer half.
NGW_EE;q 80 acres, what would yoG“HS“GEEH'Qéh’Qere buying
a $8000.00 or $10,000.00 tractor, or $15,000.001 some of

these machines costs thousands of dollars, you know.

But what's that going to do to the small-time farmer 7
Well there aren't any anymore. There's no small-time
farmers around. There was a time when up this Ridge every
farmer had a few horses, a few cows, a few pigs, and a
flock of hens: now if you go up and down this Ridge you
can't find a flock of hens. Nobody's got any hens aRymaxs
even, nobody's got any pigs and if they have they'wve got a
lot of them. They make a specialty of it. The same way
with cattle. My grandson lives a mile and a half north of

here.
Now who is that 7
Don Hobbs. He's Frieda Hobbs' son.  He's got 100 head of

cattle.

Are those dairy cattle ?

Yeah. All dairy.

Now what does he do with the milk ¥

ile ships it. 'The tank truck comes along, picks 1t up,
takes it away.

That's changed a lot too.

We used to put it in 10 gallon cans. Then the trucks come
along and we'd load the cans on and they'd take it in cans.
They'd take it to the train

No, they used to take it to the cities.
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id you ever ship cream to the cities 7
Yes, that's when T only had a few cows; four or five cows.
the cream.

When 1T was building here 1 lived over in this corner house

and we kept saving our cream checks until we were getting

ready to build here and when we got enough we bought a living
room suite with our cream checks.

That was hefore the days of Credit Cards.

Uh ves.

That's another thing that's changed.

Lots of things have changed in 90 years !

You know when I was young there wasn't a Telephone Pole ax OF
a wire nor a telephone nor a - - - certainly no televisions,
no automobiles.

No airplanes. No walking on the —— Moon,

What about your Social times. Did you used to get together

with the neighbors and have dances 7

Cch vyes. Saturday nights we used to go to Waterport, when we
lived down north: they'd have a little Ice Cream Social,

had it in the summer-time, every Saturday night. We used to
go over to Waterport and vis;t with our neighbors and all the

farmers. And, if we wanted to make a real splurge we went to
Albion and that was nine miles away. Now if you want to make
a real splurge,to go to Rochester or Buffalo or somewhere.
What did you do when you had lce Cream ? Did someone have to
make it or did you go to the grocery store and buy it 7

They bought it. They bought it in cans, in containers and
brought it in. All the churches used to put on the 1ce

Cream Socials and try to make a little money.
r.nci. :,:m: :;:T:;::— to dances that were held in the homes 7

Uh yeah. 1 danced all m;“lifﬁ. My wife and 1 danced all
the way from Buffalo into Palmyra.

Was that your second wife 7

Yes. My first wife and I never danced. My second wife,
she was brought up in a strict home, and she never danced
or played cards, but after we were married she played cards
and danced. I gquess T ruined hor. (Laughter) (:)
It doesn't sound like you ruined her Loo muach, you had

50 yvears together !
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Mo what about the dances you went to that were in the homes 2
Was there more than a violinmist 7
H Hardly ever any more than that. put we done most of our

dancing in Grange Halls. 1In Gaines, you know; this little

village has got one of the best dance floors in Orleans

County. 1t's up there now. 1t's all narrow boards and 1it's
all laid around, across the end and down the other side,

across the other end. S0 on a round dance you are always

dancing with the boards, never across them, see.

Me 1 never thought about that !

H 1 can take you down there now on the third floor. I don't
know what shape it's in; I haven't been up there in years,
but it was the best dance floor in the county.

Mo What would the women wear when they went to a dance ? Would
they wear slacks ?

H No, hardly any slacks in them days, no. I don't recall either
one of my wives ever wearing slacks. The first wife surely
never did and I don't remember if Esther ever did or not,

I doubt it.

Mc pid they wear long dresses, sometimes ?

H veah, and then some of them they shortened up too, you know.
Up to about their knees or close to their knees.

Mc and you enjoyed dancing 7 i::h = Ci>

H Yes, 1 guess we did. (:)‘T

Me pDid you ever 3qguare Dance ?

H Oh sure ! In those days dances would alternate: first a

Round Dance and then a Square one. and I've always said

a round dance, with a good partner, was a pleasure. But a
Sguare Dance, that's just fun. 1t don't make any difference
whether you do it right or not, you just have a lot of fun !

M po you remember who did the "Calling" 7

H Oh sure. Henry Rush,and Ken's orchestra that plays up here
to nasport; 1 don't know what Ken's last name is. He had an
orchestra and he“CalledP Milt Johnson "Called".

Mc pid you ever consider an Auction to be a mxagx soclial time:
when they had auctions at various places ?

H well, if they had a big auction they had donuts and coffee

and a lot of people went to auctlions FEHE just to see their
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neighbors. Other people would go to buy stuff, you know.
A lot of it was sociability, yes. But there was lots of

auctions. ['ve had two auctions in my day. When I left

Clarendon I had an auction. 1 sold three of my horses:
I kept three.
Mc Were those your big horses 7

H Two of them was. Neot these registered ones. They were
work horses 1T sold. 1 sold two work horses and a gray
driving horse,but I kept this one here that 1 have a picture

of. 1 always kept him.

Mc Who was your Auctioneer ?
H Ed Sayers. He used to live right down here a little ways.
Bernie Ferris and I - - - Bernie was a friendly farmer down

here and they had electricity as far as Gaines, and we wanted

to get it uﬁﬁzhe Ridge. So Bernie and T went up the Ridge
and we got people to sign up for it and amodng others was

Ld Sayers:; besides Auctioneering he was a farmer too.

And his wife said: "No T'm going to Albion to live, on—my
farm and 1'm not going to put in electric lights for
somebody else.” S50 Ikd comes out and he says: - - - his
wife was raising trouble about it - - - he says: "Would it
be all right if we take it off." And we says: "Yes, we
have plenty of signers." S0 we took his name off., well

after a while when she made up her mind that she was going
to have to live there, then she wanted electricity and then
he wouldn't put it in! 50 they never had electricity while
they were there.

Mc Unce the line had gone through, if they weren't on,they
couldn't connect in to it °

H They could, but he wouldn't do it ! she made a fuss when

he signed up,and then after he took his name off he wouldn't

go for it again. That was married life for you. (Laughter)
Me Tell me about the Lodge that you belong to! the 1.0.G.T.,
what was that » That was the Good Templars 7 o = =
H Independent Urder of Good Templars. Efisb
Me Is that what you always called that 7 1.0.G.T. ?
H L-Eften—%gt-?iqht f [ Laughter)

Mo How often did you mesx meet with the Knights of Good Templars
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I think we met about every week. Then 1 belonged to the

gdd Fellows, for years, in Albion,

Probably belonged to the Grange too, didn't you 2

vYes, for years and years. [T was Master of the Grange and

I was Master of the County Grange. | was in two or three
years.amd 1 thought T wouldn't take it again so they put my
son, Richard, in. So that's ‘just about as bad off.

Is the Grange going now ?

No, it's gone. ‘There is only one active Grange in the

county and that's Barre Center. ‘There used to be - - -
Y

well there was Murray and Clarendon and Barre and Gaines

and Waterport, Medina, Lyndonville, shelby Center; ¢ripes,
it was full of Granges, you know, at the time, but they've
all gone.

Is that because they've gone the way - - - it's gone the
way of the small farmers 7

Well nos it's gone the way of other forms of entertainment.

Now it's so easy to get television and radic and things like
that. In those days Granges was about our only form or
recreation you might say.

Was it more recreation than education 2

Both.

They hawve Farm Bureau today, still, don't they 7

Oh yes.

but that's not a really lot of fun with that is therejcr
is there 7

No, there's no fun to it.

1 understand you went on a tour once. Was that with the

Farm Bureaua 7

Yeah.

what was that, would you tell me 2

1t's been so long ayo, 1 don't remember much about 1it.

I know we went over axex Lo Canada and since | got into

the dairy business [ went on two Dairy Tours. Looking at

some of these outstanding herds, you know. And sesxakiy
specially to look at sgme noted bulls. Of course when I
first started dairying there wasn't any Artificial
Insemination and now very few farmers have a bull, you know.

well, they're quite dangerous aren't they, really ?
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H They can be dangerous, you bet, if you're not careful
around them. You don't want to be like our friend, he
used to tell me, he said: "1'm afraid of a bull from the

day he's born." When you had that attitude, that wasn't
dangerous. Just be always careful.

Mc What kind of dairy cattle did you have 2

i Holsteins. ‘That what my grandson has too, You see my
grandson has between 400 and 500 acres.
That's PFrieda's son. Frieda was up here and you met her.
I used to introduce her as my oldest daughter, but she
didn't like that so I don't do that any more. (Laughter)
I think'Ba§e'£ 67 or 68, 1 guess.

Me Now who is'Eabé]?

H Frieda. I've got another daughter, Avis. She works for the
County. 1 always call her Chip.”

Me Like a“Chipﬁfo The ©0ld Block ? (Laughter)

H I guess s0.

Mc Speaking of chips reminds me of wood chips. You have a

nice wood fire going in your kitchen here. Do you also

have weentral heating ?
H Oh yes. We burn gas. Are you warm enough ?
Mo Plenty, thank you. 1It's very comfortable here. You have
a lovely home. TI'm amazed when I think that you drew the plans
for this and cleared the land and built this house.
H I cut all the rough lumber; that's the frame, .3;:r.thr~ raticgh
boards and the sub-flooring. ‘lhese f[loors are all double,
you know. 1 cut all that stuff from the woods. 1 had an old
man that lived down here named John Ferris, Uncle John we
called him, and he come along one day when 1 had the frame
up and the partitions up and he says: "Fay, I'd like to
laok at your house." 2nd 7 said: "1'd like to show you."
50 1 showed him through. “Well,” he says: "that's geoing
to be all right.” He says: "wWhere did you buy your plans 3"
I gaid: "I didn't buy them. T drew them." He says: "You
mean to tell me that all yvou'we got to go by is plans you
drew yourself 2V ard 1 says: "Yes, that's all.” Wil 1"

the old man says: "it must be you know more than it looks so's
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you did." (Laughter) That's what you'd call a left-handed
compliment. o
Mr. Hollenbeck, you say that youar lull name is Fay (arr

-

Hollenbeck. What is the story on (Carr 3
My grandmother on my mother's side had a sister and she
married one of the Carr Brothers who lived in Pavilion

and they were wealthy. BAnd one of them had a son named
Fay. And when 1 was born they thought, well, they'd name
me after Fay Carr and maybe it would rub off some of their

money onto me. [t never happened that way. So 1 was named

after Fay Carr who lives in Pavilion, and that was his name

and | was named Fay.Carr Hollenbeck thinking that some day

T might get some of that money.

Maybe it rubbed off on your son, Paul Farsons.

Oh, he's got it rich ! You know Faul must be a millionaire.
Well, don't you think it has something to do with being in
the (il Business 7

oh, it's all to do with it. He's got two homes. He's got

a summer home in Carolina and a winter home in Florida and
two automobiles, a Mercedes Benz they call them, one of

these highest priced cars.

Mr. liollenbeck, do you remember when women first got the

Vote 72

Sure T remember. 1 can't tell when it was.
No you remember if your wife was excited ?
Ho.

Did she wote ?

ves =he voted but she wasn't fussy whether she did ot not.

She voted because other people did.

ilow about when the women first got their hal: "bobbed" 7
5he never got her hair "bobbed®.

pid you have any feeling about women having their hair cut ?

No. T1f they wanted it cut 1 didn't care. Do you want to
near a story v (NOTE: Eather, and wife , il cut Lor Rain).
Sure.

1 used to clip my horses, you know. [ had a gasoline
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engine and when T got up around their ears they didn't
like it and we had to put a twist on them. We had a stick
with ak a hole in the end and a cord through it - - = it
made a loop about that big — - - and we'd pull the horse's
nose out like this and put that over his nose and twist it
up until it got a little pressure on it on nose, Yyou know.
Then they'd pay more attenticn to that twist, the hurt on
their nose, than they would with what you was doing with
the machine. aAnd 1 called my wife out. I says: "Come
out and hold this twist for me." And so she'd hold the
twist. All at once she said: "T feel faint." Well I
jumped right down and shut the motor off and 1 turned
around just in time to catch her. She had on a pair of
pumps and she had on a pair of nose glasses and had a long
braid of hair clear down below her waist. 1T picked her
up and she fell out of her pumps. 1 picked her up and
got her up to the back steps in my arms with her and she
started to vomit, totally unconscious. 1 took her nose
glasses off and I had her nose glasses in my hand and
this darn braid I was keeping in the back so it wouldn't

get plastered. You talk about a man having his hands

111}!! she, at that time, probably weighed about 170 pounds;

and 1 had her in my arms and her nose glasses and her
braid, she was totally unconscious and she was heaving up
everything she ever ate. That was a time when you heard
about a man having his hands full and 1 sure did !

I should think so. Put you used to c¢lip your horses ?

Yes. Clip them in the spring.

Why would you do that ?

well, to get all that dead hair off from them and it
wviould be coonler. Tt was quite a common RXEERX practice
to clip a horse in the spring.

pDid you ever show your horses at the Fair ?
Yeah.

Ever win any prizes ¥

veah, 1 did because there wasn't much competition. I had

more horses there than anybody else.
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Me Alsoc because they were Pure-Bregds, right ?

H sure. 1 had stallions and brood mares and colts.

Mc How about the Fair, was it more active than it is today 2
] Yeah, but it was on it's way out then, the Albion Fair.

That's where 1 did my showing, the Albion Fair: never
showed them any where else.
Mc I think the 4-H Fair, though,is really exciting.

H Yeah, it's come along good. 'Too bad they didn't keep the
old Fairgrounds while they had it. They had a good

Race Track there.

Me I understand they had some Bool-Leg property over that

way, too ¥

H well, yeah. fThe Italian fellows had most of the Boot-Legging
business.

Mc In Albion.

51 I used to be real good friends and sold a lot of stutf to

Stanley Barry in Lyndonville, and worked for him.

Mc What do you mean, you sold a lot didf of stuff 2

H ©Ch, 1 used to buy stuff of him; fertilizer and seed and
everything, then 1'd sell him my wheat and my cabbage and
my apples. He was a Produce bealer. His building 1s just
notrth of the waterport KHatlroad now, on the north side.

It's abandoned now. His sons haven't done anything with it.
Me Thank you very much, Mr. Hollenbeck, for this second

interview., It's very, very helpful.
H Wwell, T hope T told you some good.

(NTE : Qo . Beudcls 4 H. e fistsy Conoume
Convthoilvon, it o desidtd Lo continue
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This is tape # 3 with Mr. Fay Hollenbeak, December 19,

&

Mr. Hollenbeck, as we continue our interview, would you

1980. Helen Mchllister is doing the interviewing.

want to tell us how the home situation has changed,

concerning the l[lVIUS T You remember the Back—hGqus?

Oh sure. When 1 was young we didn't have any inside
toilets at all. We had to go outdoors. My grandmother
had a square carpet about, oh, about 14 or 15 inches
sgquare with a hole cut in it and she used to have it
hung back of the kitchen stove and when we'd have to

go to the toilet in the winter-time we'd take this carpet
and roll it up, run out there and spread it on the seat,
and sit on it. Nice and warm ! It wasn't bad at all.
And then in the night-time we'd take a lantern and p

the lantern down between our feet: boy, we were pretty ™
comfortable, we thought it was nice !

Was that quite a ways from the house 2

It was usually far enough sc you couldn't smell i = ! You

didn't want it too close. { Laughter)

Well, going back to early remembrances, do you remember

when groceries used to be delivered by a local store ?

Oh yes. When 1 went to Clarendon 1 was a total stranger
and 1 went down to the village store and there was a man
named Floyd Gillis run it.am3¥ 1'd never seen him before
and 1 told him where 1 lived and how much of a family I
hat, and 1 said: "Now weé'rio golng to have some bubtter and
some eggs, but 1'1l1l want more groceries than we'll have

stuff to pay for and 1'd like to run a bill and pay for

it next fall." And I says: "Will that be all right with
you 72" And Floyd locked at me a minute and he says:

Wy “"vYou look as though you'd pay.” He says: "Come

and get anything you want." And that was my introduction

to Floyd Gillis. That was 1in April,and when summer come
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he used to drive a wagon up by there and he'd stop and
my wite would buy stuff off from the wagon. And, when
fall come 1'd go down and pay him after I had wmy wheat
sold and my cabbage and apples and things like that - -
- - before I would have some money: then 1 would go down
and pay my bill. But that was my intreduction to Floyd
Gillis and T always liked him after that.

when the grocery truck came around; [ assume your wife
didn't go shopping every day to the grocery store.

She didn't even go once a week ! The grocery cart come
every week anyway, and they used to come with a whole
stock of stuff and then in later years they got so that
they come around and took orders and then the next day
they would deliver.

When they brought things around, would they be packager
up aor were they in the bulk 7

They were packaged. Bulk - - - when T was young sugar,
I guess, it come in barrels - - a barrel of sugar, all
loose, you know: brown sugar and white sugar. And
crackers come in a big barrel, a barrel of crackers.
Lots of times the barn cat would have a nest laying on
top of the crackers.

What was this 2/

The cat ! He would be laving on top of the erackers.
We didn't think nothing of that, we didn't mind it.
They used to bring bread around in big blue boxes, when
they first commenced to deliver bread:; it come in big
blue boxes, about once a week. And you would go there
and they would sell you a loaf of bread. But in those
days the wives baked all our bread; they didn't sell much
bread.

And, you made your own butter and had your own egas

uh wyes.

And your own milk 7

Yep.

And cottage cheese and butter,

They can have the cottage cheese. They made it but 1
never ate it ! 1 never could go for sour cheese or sour

milk - - - that's what it was. #ut 1 always liked milk
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and butter.

You said something about the crops you were growing,

such as cabbage and 1 guess you arew a lot of tomatoes
at one time.
ch vyes.

Nid you have Transient Workers help vou at times 7

Yes. & lot of them. A lot of them fellows come along and
we'd hire them - - - never see 'em before. Some would stay
all the season, some would stay just a few days, but lots
of them would come back the next year, the same men locking
for work.

Maw would these be in addition to your hired men 2

Yes. You didn't have hired men enough to pick a crop of

tomatoes. You have 15 or 20 acres of tomatoes, you know,

and it would be a lot of hand work and you wouldn't have
enough help to do that.

Where would Transient Workers come from 2

The cities, most of them. In fact they were all from the
cities. Most men in the country had work but lots of men
in the cities didn't have work, and Fhey'd come along out
in the country looking for work,and they'd find apple
picking and tomato pickin' and down in the hopp country
they used Lo go tin-'l;n and :Lr__u"k Liopps, where they made beer,
you know. 1 heard them Lmll-lhat these hopps ¥BEXY were very
loose and they'd pick them in boxes and sometimes one of
their friends that didn't like them would give this box a
kick and the hopps would settle down and it would make them
mad, vyou know. They would get their box all full and
somebody would kick it and it wouldn't be full any more.
How did the Transient Workers get from the ecity to here 2
Walk !

From the city ¢

Sure ! All the Transients that 1 ever hired was from
walking down the road. In those days they didn't have no
other way but to walk ! Unly walk. They didn't own a
horse and there was no automobiles.

What about "riding the rails" , like "ho-bos" 7

Uh, they would do that but they would get off at these little
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places like waterport and branch out and walk fTrom there,
Some of these "ho-bos" were proetby good guys. Thoey'd have
caﬁps, you know, in the woods. They used to have a place

we called the Gravel Pit, up west of Waterport,and they had
a permanent camp out there. Sometimes there were be a
| M -

dozen or more men camping there and geoing out to work.

The people complained about it and when my brother was
Sheriff, he had & big police dog and b 3 was savage and he
had what you would call a mkexk choker collar on him, you
know, andffhey called Hﬂssrand Ross went down there and he
took this dog with him, emsl He went back to the camp and he
told these boys, he says: "Now fellas, there's been
complaining about you and you'wve got to get out of here.”

He says: "Now I'm coming down tomorrow and I'm going to turn
this dog loose." Well he went down "tomorrow" and there was
nobody there. They had all cleared out ! They didn't want
any part of that dog.

What would the pecple complain about 7

0h, stealing stuff. They'd go out and dig their potatoes
out of the fields. They had to eat, you know, at these camps.

They'd go out and beg from the farmers: get a hand-out here

and there. They'd go out in the field and dig a few hills
of pakaskes potatoes and take off with the sweet corn;
anything to live.

This would be before the time of Welfare or Food Stamps 7

oOh, yes, My Gosh, yes !

S50 if wou didn't Kknow how to get something’you really
starved.

Yes. Well, you're talking about Food Stamps: that's a new
wrinkle, that hasn't been going on very long. »~nd Welfare,
there was no such a thing as that. 1f it got real bad, you

went to the Poor House and that was a disgrace,toc go to the

Poor House. Now they always get welfare. Social Security,
that's welfare !
Not really, berause we pay 1n-to 1t.

Well T didn't !

Wwell, T think most people who worked for wages paid in to it.

veah, that's true. But 1t's come to me and I didn't ever

pay in té it. And Morris, when he - - - 1 tried to get
(2om)
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Social Security for him and [ took him to Batavia first

they asked: "do you support him."” and I said: "sure I've
always supported him." "Well why do you support him 2"
and 1 said: "'cause 1've had te.” "Well 1 don't think

he can get anything, but I'll try." So they sent in the
papers. Then they sent me a letter and T had to take him
down to Rkochester to a specialist down there. So 1 took
him down there and come back and run along a while and then
out of a clear sky he got a check for 51000.00.

That felt pretty good.

and since then he's had Social Security, same as [ do.

He gets a check every month and 1 do tDo}and Hetty does too.

It's all wWelfare, you Know, 1in a way.

when you were a younger man do you remember Gypsies being

arcund 7

oh sure. Yeah, I can tell you a story about that. My wife
and T come from Albion cne day and we drove up in front of
the garage here and there was a couple of Gypsy women in
there with Floyd Woolston] he run the garage. ~And when I

went in there one of them took me and they pulled us back
away from the door so my wife wouldn't see us: 'cause they
knew xhrkdxzer that she'd see what we wasn't thinking about.
and we was having a lot of fun ! wWwhought, Fhis woman that
1 had,xsusk she just had a skirt or a loose dress on. You
could pull her dress out and you could look right down all
the length of her. &nd after a while they left and I got

te thinking: "Gee T found her hand in my pocket once and

1 took her hand cut and put my hand in my pocket." T got

to thinking: "Maybe she was in there once before 2" And 1
laooked and sure enough 1 found ExXRExHHXRXIIXNARKEARE MY
55.00 bhill was gone. So 1 told my wife - Qaed | suppose
Floyd, that son-of-a-gun, she took £5.00 out of my pocket.
And he said: "5She did ?" And he locked into his pocket

and they had taken all of his money and he hadn't even missed

it. When we came up through Gaines they were there in front

of Bern's Garage and my wife wanted me to stop and 1 savys:

"No, i'm a big enough fool to let a woman take 55,00 out
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of my pocket. 5She's welcome to it. It won't ever (i:)
happen again, | can promise you that .

o you remember the Gypsies traveling in any kind of a
Caravan 7

Ch ves.

What was it like 7

All horse drawn carry-allg. aAnd they'd camp, st=ther—tat-
pax - - - they'd pull in someplace and set up a camp. Some
people wouldn't let them camp. They'd say: “Go on, get out
of here !" Because they stole a lot of stuff, vyou know,
those Gypsies did. They'd go into your fields and take corn
and dig potatoes and do anything, they had to live, you know.
LT #xx they couldn't steal enough money to buy stuff that
they wanted, they stole it.

You had "ho-bos" come along. Are "ho-bos" and Transients
the same thing 7

well, I don't think so. Some of these "ho-bos" were
"professional ho-bos”. They didn't work, they just lived
off the country as they went along. Others of them were

pretty good men; some of them were family men that were out

aof work, and lots of them that would work for me would send

their money to their wives when they would earn money. They'd

say: "Send it to so-and-so." aAnd 1 would.

What did you tell me - - - there was a saying: "Working From
sSun-up To sun-down". low was that 7

That was in Virginia. 1 was down there and he had colored
boys working for him. And 1 said: "well, what hours do they
work 7" And he said: "They work from “"can" 'til "ecan't" «,
And 1 said: "“Gee, what do you mean 7 1 never heard that."

He said: "They work from the time they can see until they

can't sSea," ""“hat was their hours. I never heard that before:

work from "can" *til Bl o | Tl A @

I told you about the Boot-Leggers having an extra spring on

o w1

\
)~

1 s

the backs of their cars

\



Hixrd Lenbeck 4]

Tape # 3, Side 2
M Mr. Hallepheck, what can you tell me abboul Boot-lLeggers
cars 7
H These Hoot-lLeggers had this extra spring under the back of

their cars so that when they were loaded with liquor their
cars wc:r:ﬁ._c‘.i ride about level and they wouldn't be so
noticeable. 'That how they used to get away with things -
- - put these extra springs so their cars rode pretty high
when they were empty but when they were loaded they rode

abhout level.

Mc Those hottles probably weighted a lot.

H well, a quart of liguor - - they'd get 12 bottles in a sack
- - —= they used to get it by the sack-full.

Mo The bottles didn't break very casily 7

H Mo, they were covered in saxkeaxd cardboard, corrugated
wrappers.

Mc What were you telling me about the horse drawn wagons that

had the large wheels in back °
H rnd smaller wheels in the front. All Lumber Wagons were
that way. 211 of them - - the front wheels were always

smaller.

Mo ;;5 that just Lumber Wagons

H well, the Democrats, - - - any four-wheeled wagon - - so
whoen they cramped arouand bto bturn, Lthe wheel would oramg
underneath the body - - 1f they were high ones they couldn't
get under there, they couldn't turn short. All Lumber Wagons

had the =smaller wheels in the front.

Mc what do you remember about the Circus as a young man ?
H well, when I lived in the city my dad used to get me up

mornings and we'd go down and watch the Tircus unload.

M What oity 7

H Lockport. They used to come in there on traine and sometimes
' . . . 1
1t would be the wet time 1n the spring = = anytlmeiwuuld b2

wet and these wagons would get stuck and they'd hook these

big horses on and if they couldn't get them out they'd bring
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an elephant arcund. He'd put his head to the back of
the wagon and push them right out.

Mo How did they come, on more than one¢ train car 7 [Did they

have a food car 7

H Oh, they had several cars. They had cars with cages in that
had animals in and flat cars, where the wagons were on. 1In
those days they always would have a Parade, you know, and
parade through the city toe advertise the Circus - = - some
animals in cages and they always had nice horses.

M And a band =

H and a band.
Me Or a Calliope 72
H They used to drive a stake, you know, and there would be

three men,with sledge hammers, around this wooden stake,
and they'd be a hammering on that stake all the while. They
would go right around, just like that. The three would all
be in time. 'They never hit each other.

Mec Good xxx rhythum.

H Good rhythdm. First one, then the other and the other - -
- = three of them. 1 say, that stake would just disappear
right into the ground.

Mo That was when they were putting up the tents 7

H Putting up the tents, yeah.

Me nid they have more than one tent 7

S Oh yes., They had several tents; but they had the big main
tent where they had the rings in, the circus rings. Then
they had the tents where some of the help stayed and some
of the animals were in ssmexmk separate cages. A lot of

cages and a lot of tents because they had just one Big Top,

they used to call it, and that's where they had the rings
and the circus performance. #ut they the animals in other
tents around. Elephants would be staked out with bands

around their legs and staked cut arcund the grounds and theyrg

be fastened by one foot.

Mo id you ever carry water for an elephant 2
H No, 1 never did. Ho, T never carried water to an elephant.
Mo But you used to enjoy going 3

H Uh yes.
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You've been active in the local church up here, the

iaines Congregational Church. HNow what did you tell me

about the construction of that building ?

Well, 1T can tell you lots of things.

Did you help design that ?

Yes. T guess 1 practically did.

Did someone ask you to do that or was it your idea 7
Well, it just worked around that way, 1 guess. After our
church burned,we had to build another one and we just went
at it and built it, that's all.

There had been another church there before ?

Oh vyes.

What happened to it ?

It burned. Betty can probably tell you more about it. 1T
don't want to blow my own horn. I had quite a bit to do
with building the church.

Well, tell me about it. You designed this house. Had you

designed this one first 7
Yes. Well, the studding on that church is all 2 by 6s and

we got that in Lyndonville,amd It was an old coal elevator
and they tore it down,and it was made up of 2 by 6s laid
flat on top of each other and they were 8 foot tall.amd We
got them and they're all in this church down here now.
2nd then I went to Rochester with my son's truck, Dick's
truck, and we bought the doors and the windows down there

/
and the knotty pine and all. T had guite a bit to do with

it, T guess, when 1 think about it.

And, vou're quite proud of it, really.

Well, T kind of got over that. The pulpit down there - -
my son and 1 got it cout of albion - - - it was discarded
over in Albion. GCot it out of an old barn over in Albion.

And the Communion Table down here is made of my own cherry:

my boy and 1 cut the wood. We took it down to Carlton
Station and a man down there made 1t. On the front of it

- ¥ = & »
it says: '1n Remembrance Of Me. And, I tock 1t over to

Albion and a Polish
fellow - - - Catholic - - - he put this stenciling on there.
And when 7 went to pay him, 1 says: "How much do 1 owe

you 2" He says: "Say a prayer for me."” He wouldn't take
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any money. 5So 1 know where the Lectern come from and 1

know quite a lot of things about the church, come to think
about it.

It's been a big part of your life then, hasn't it ?

Wwell, I been more or less interested in it,and 1'm not
religious a bit.

ch, T find that hard to helievef
Wwell, T never ask the hlessing at the table; 1 never did,

1 don't ever pray, I like to go to church; one of my

girl friends =aid: "Don't you get an up-lift 2" T says:
"No." 1 says: "I'm just the same when 1 come out and 1

do when | go in." &And I do. And she says: "What do you
go to church for 2" "well," 1 says: "I like to hear a

smart man talk. 7T like to hear the people sing and I like
to see folks." But as far as being religious, I'm not
religious a bit. n

well, 1 think that depends on your definition of religious‘

and I think you're a good man and you've lived a good life
and set lots of good examples, so I would call you religious.
Well, T don't know.

Not religious with wings and a halo, you know, not that
kind of religious.

Oone of our preachers, | was talking to him about it and

I says: "I'm not religious.” and he says: "It's too bad

there aren't more like you."

—
e

LS

Yes, a good example. —

1 wonder if you could tell us anything at all about the

Ashwood train WMEsmEENX wreck 7

Well, there was btwo Eﬂ?lﬂ wriccks down there. ‘The one 1
remember was just west of Waterport, it wasn't really in
Ashwood. What I remember about it - - — about every farmer
around there, including my father, got a cheese out of

there. There was a car load of cheese. Big round cheeses.

That car was wrecked and the cheese was scattered around

and every farmer around there had cheese.
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th
Then that wasn't the aAshwood train wreck withqpassengers ?

Mo, no, 1T don't remember much about that.
That was before you time, maybe.

I guess it must have been,

You were telling me a little bit about a friend of yours,
an Italian man, who worked for you,who didn't like your

cooking ?

That was the Italian, yeah.

Tell me about his eating habits

I hired him one year and I liked him, he was a good man, and

1 wanted to hire him again,and he says: "I like to work for
you but I don't like your board.” He says: XENXANER
KEXKAXNXKX "Potatoes, potatoes, potatoes ! Over in Italy

we feed them to the pigs !"  And when my wife would make a
pie with a meringue frosting, he'd scrap that frosting all
off, he wouldn't eat that! He even hate to eat the pie. But
I said to him: "Well Joe,1 got a refrigerator down cellar
and a gas stove:; why not work for me and board yourself 2"

5c that appealed to him and he did. 2nd he'd go out and

get burdock leaves and chicory and everything and pile up

a big dish of green stuff and then he would cover it with
black pepper and oil’and that was his dinner. Didn't appeal

g
What was it you said you liked to eat, oysters 7

I like oysters, you bet !

Maybe that's one reason you've lived to be this agef

I don't knows and I like raw oysters.

I do too, with wvinegar.

Yeah, vinegar and salt and pepper. That's the only thing |1
ever doctor them up with. i never put salt and pepper mm  at
the table, never. |1 never put popper on anything in my lifes
only raw oysters. Aand, 1 like Cod-fish gravy. When ever

they have Cod-fish gravy or scalloped oysters, T don't want

anything else, 1 make a meal of it.
Right, that's right.

That's what for dinner tonight.

I think 1'1l stav.
0-K, you're welcome. We've gots lots of Cod-fish and
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wee've got lots of pakaskes potatoces.
Mc I'd love it ! My husband would disown me.
H That's all 1'll eat tonight. 1 drink milk and Cod-fish and

potatoes, that's 1t.

o,

" L
Again, thank you wvery much for this little P.S5. that we've
added on.3 T appreciate it very much Mr. Hollenbeck.

And thank you Betty.

=
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This taped interview was transcribed by
Lysbeth Hoffman of Lekeside, New York.
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By Eleanor .
Weeks Wilder

(The author of this column has written periodically for the
Journal-Register over the past 15 to 20 years and draws on a storehounse of
knowledge and ‘‘curiosity’’ gained during her tenure as a historian.)

: ST 979--The half century old house stands
Fay C. Hollenbeck still enjoys living in the . fourquare northeast corner of Waterport and
house he build from trees he cut down in the Ridge Roads.

woods a half century ago. -
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Pine sheeting is the step before shingles.
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1938.-Foundation of the house,



STORY OF A HOUSE

Altion - There was a twinkle in his
syes as he said “You know writing this
story was not my idea’’. Fay C. Hollen-
beck, Ridge Road, Gaines is @ modest
marn. His six children, 19 grandchildren
and 20 great grandchildren are all pretty
proud of the fact that fifty years ago he
cut down trees in the woods to build the
house he still lives in. Then, too the
house site grew from 30 to 400 acres,
there was the large Holstein cairy herd
and the hall dozen years he raised prize
Percheron horses, sometimes 30 a year
and brought home ribbons from the
Orieans County fair.,

It took some doing but rhe family
finally got him to write the story of
building the house that still stands four-
square af the intersection of Waterport
and Ridge Roads. Fay C. Hollenbeck will
celetrate his 80th birthday Jufy 31, 1878
and expects to play baseball at the
farmily reunion.

His story follows:

History of My House by Fay Hollenbeck

Fifty years ago | went into the woods
looking for enough hemlock trees lo
build a house. After some searching |
found a group of hemlacks in Johnny
Walker's woods. So we started
dickering. We appraised one tree at a
time and as we agreed on price we
marked the tree and listed it in my book.
When we finished dickering we had
marked all the hemfock trees In his
woods,

Having drawn the plans for the house
| had a pratty good idea of the number of
and size of the trees to saw out enough
lumber to build the house | had in mind.

Hemiock doesn't warp and no matier
how long it fays around you can always
drive a nail in it

| hired Dick Neal, a my in his teens,
and we started for the woods carrying
our axes, saws and lunch my wife had
packed for us. It was very cold and foo
far to walk home for lunch, so we would
build a fire and stand around if to keep
Warm wm.'e we ate.
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As we cul down (he frees we sawed
tharm into fogs measuring the small end
and making & record in my book |
necded 2 x 10s, 2 x 8s and 2 x 45 and
several hundred feet of one inch boards.
We snaked them to the house site with a
team of horses, and | kept a record,

Fiesse Owens of Eagle Harbor came
with his portable sawmill and | carried

the lumber stacking it fn piles, each’

length and size by itself,

January thew problems began to crop
up. In attempting to dig a well and the
foundation of the barn | had discovered

a layer of guicksand on the ciey har- .

dpan.” ™
! dug the cellar for the house with a

horse-drawn scoop. Knowing the |

78

quicksand was there we drew in several

foads of stone and started digging a
trench for the foundation of the house.
Everett Hobbs (later my son-in-law)
helped. We would shovel out the
quicksand and put rocks down before it
!iran back on the clay hardpan, so the
|| foundation of the house reached three
feet deeper that the cellar bottom level.
The chimney was built on a four foot
square bottomn of rocks and cement.

| then made a lumber form for the
foundation walls. It was mild that
February and we had a bee pouring the

cellarwall. There were the Canham

twins, Cecil Park, the Rush boys, Glen
Miller and Hobby. They fed the mixer
arid then wheeled the cement in
wheelbarrows to pour the cellar walls. It
turned cold but when the cement had
set | tare away the cribbing and we werg
ready to build the house. *

My neighbor, Bill Banker, a very good
carpenter and worker helped me buid
the house. The first two Hoors were
double laid, the sub floaring of rock elm
timbers, two E x 8z (ald end to end with
supporting posts reaching across the
cellar, north to south forming a joist for
the floor laid corner to corner of one in-
ch boards.



To The Editor:

Last month I received a copy
of your publication. I was
amazed al such complele
coverage and wish to com-
pliment you and your staff. 1
believe you edit one of the most
oulstanding newspapers we
have ever had the privilege of
reading — a complete and
widespread  knowledge of all
current topics, national, state
and local,

Your article re: Fay
Hollenbeck by Eleancr Weeks
Wilder was very interesting
and memorahle. I might add if

Eleanor had delved further into '

Fay's past it, teo, could have
been very Interesting. He was a
man . whose activities in the
interest of young people were
unusual, I am sure if some
parents were alive today, they
would not be remiss in relaying
the comfort and pleasure they
enjoyed in knowing their sons
and-or daughters were at
Gaines Grange practicing or
playing basketball or baseball
with Fay as their leader. He
instilled such enthusiasm in the

teen-agers in the late twenties .

and thirties.

1 also want to thank you for
your article on our Indiana
Syeamnores and “‘Larry Bird”

of whorm we Hoosiers are so.

vroud, At that time, oor In-

diznapolis Star had not covered
it

FRANCES (HOBES) HOGATT

Odon, Indiana

Senior Cilizen and

Eormer Native of Kenyonville
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Gerald Miller and | did the wiring. The
plumbing and heating supplies we got
from Gerald Farsons of Lyndonville, my
wife's cousin who kept & hardware sicre
there. John Peters came over lo help in-
stall the malerial,

I tined the whole house with sheels of
orne half inch thick rock lath.

George Daum made all the window
sash and glazed the panes at Malfory's
wood working shop, corner of West Ave,
and West Academy 51. Mallory was get-
ting ready to go out of business and of-
fered me & good deal on the doors if |
would take them all. There were 19, just
enough.

| was lucky to get Ermo Tibaldi of
Albjon, a mason trained in lialy. We set
up & mortar box in whal is now the living
roam. | mixed avery bit of plaster in ihe
house and carrled it to him. The work
got harder as the chimney rose from the
cellar and | had fo carry material up-
stairs onto the kitchen roof and up a lad-
der to the main roof, plaster, tile and
brick. And the chimney /s as good today
as when it was built, 3

Seager Bros. painted the inside walls,
They chewsd tobacco, spit in the paint
and then mixed it in but | never saw it did

As [ look back | remember that all the
lumber in my house is full size, the two
inch boards are full two inches and one
inch thickness, ;

In those days there was not much
said about insulation. You might say
there is not a bit of insulation in this
house but the cold doesn't secp
through the walls.

But if you started digging into the
sidewalls you would go through doubls
shingles, two fthicknesses of building
paper, sheeting of one inch hemfock
boards, a four inch air space, one half
inch rock lath and the plaster.

You know | wouwld not be surprised if |
were the only man hereabouts who is
fiving on a house built from trees he cui
down himself. Of course | had help on
the other end of the crosscut saw. | had
o buy shingles, the hardwood floors, the
inside and outside trim buf that is about
all in the line of lumber thet did not come
from the woods,

How much did it cost to build my
house? Well - I'm not very good at
remembering figures any more and !
couldn 't say, not rightly.



